
November Board Meeting 
To be held at the offices of  

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
6701 Shirley Avenue 

Austin, TX  78752 

Wednesday, November 17, 2021 
10:30 a.m. 

1



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 
BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 
To be held at the offices of 

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
6701 Shirley Avenue 
Austin, Texas 78752 

November 17, 2021 
10:30 A.M. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL                  Bill Dietz, Chair 
CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

Pledge of Allegiance – I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America, and to the Republic for which it 
stands, one Nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all. 

Texas Allegiance – Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible. 

The Board of Directors of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation will meet to consider and possibly act on the 
following: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT         David Long 

Tab A:  Homeownership Finance Report 
Tab B:  Development Finance Report  
Tab C:  Monthly Financial Reports 

ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING: 

Tab 1 

Tab 2 

Tab 3 

Tab 4 

Tab 5 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting held on October 13, 
2021. 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Annual Independent Financial Audit for the Fiscal 
Year Ending August 31, 2021. 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Amendments to the Texas Community Capital (TCC) 
Organizational By-Laws to Adhere to U.S. Treasury’s Community Development Financial Institutions 
(CDFI) Certification Requirements, and Other Items as Presented. 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Amended Policies for the Texas Housing Impact Fund. 

Presentation and Discussion of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation’s Fiscal Year 2021 and 
2022 Strategic Plans. 

CLOSED MEETING: 
Consultation with legal counsel on legal matters – Texas Government Code § 551.071 
Deliberation regarding purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property – Texas Government Code § 551.072 
Deliberation regarding prospective gift or donation to the state or Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation – Texas 
Government Code § 551.073 
Personnel Matters – Texas Government Code § 551.074 
Implementation of security personnel or devices – Texas Government Code § 551.076 
Other matters authorized under the Texas Government Code 

2



 
 

 
ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING: 
 
Action in Open Meeting on Items Discussed in Closed Executive Session 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
ADJOURN  
 
A Board member of the Corporation may participate in a Board meeting by video conference pursuant to Section 551.127 of 
the Texas Government Code.  A quorum of the Board will meet at the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation’s 
headquarters located at 6701 Shirley Avenue., Austin Texas, 78752. 
  
Individuals who require auxiliary aids or services for this meeting should contact Rebecca DeLeon, ADA Responsible 
Employee, at 512-220-1174 or Relay Texas at 1-800-735-2989 at least two days before the meeting so that the appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
Section 46.035 of the Texas Penal Code prohibits handgun licensees from carrying their handguns at government meetings 
such as this one.  This prohibition applies to both concealed carry and open carry by handgun licensees.  Handgun licensees 
are required by law to refrain from carrying their handguns at this meeting. 
 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation reserves the right to recess this meeting (without adjourning) and convene at a 
later stated time, if and to the extent allowed by law.  If Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation adjourns this meeting 
and reconvenes at a later time, the later meeting will be held in the same location as this meeting.  Texas State Affordable 
Housing Corporation also reserves the right to proceed into a closed meeting during the meeting in accordance with the 
Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. If permitted by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code, any item on this Agenda to be discussed in open meeting may also be discussed by the Board (and 
any other authorized persons) in closed meeting. 
 

3



President’s Report 
 

4



Tab A 
Homeownership Finance Report 

 
 

5



 Homeownership Programs with Down Payment Assistance

January 1 to August 31, 2021

Month Closed # of Loans % Total At a Glance 

January‐21 263,196,644$          1286 8.7% Average Annual Income $62,238

February‐21 237,176,153$          1156 7.9% Average Purchase Price $217,146

March‐21 351,278,022$          1682 11.7% Average Loan Amount $212,040

April‐21 360,306,702$          1733 12.0% Average Household Size 2

May‐21 379,431,257$          1795 12.6% Average Interest Rate 3.559%

June‐21 466,348,552$          2175 15.5% Program %

July‐21 460,126,957$          2127 15.3% Home Sweet Texas  85.24%

August‐21 495,652,013$          2258 16.4% Homes for Texas Heroes 14.76%

Totals $3,013,516,300 14212 100% Active Military 0.95%

Lender Closed # of Loans % Total Allied Health Faculty 0.13%

Fairway Independent Mortgage Corporation $221,154,255 1096 7.3% Corrections Officer 0.70%

Everett Financial, dba Supreme Lending $201,242,569 926 6.7% County Jailer 0.14%

Gateway Mortgage Group, a division of $152,594,018 750 5.1% EMS Personnel 0.32%

PrimeLending $122,844,520 592 4.1% Fire Fighter 0.70%

DHI Mortgage Company, Ltd. $114,612,013 475 3.8% Peace Officer 1.10%

Academy Mortgage Corporation $100,991,977 490 3.4% Professional Nurse Faculty 0.91%

Guild Mortgage Corporation $91,868,050 452 3.0% Public Security Officer 0.25%

SFMC, LP dba Service First Mortgage Comp $90,077,258 423 3.0% School Counselor 0.11%

loanDepot.com LLC $85,688,371 401 2.8% School Librarian 0.01%

Amcap Mortgage, LTD $83,586,146 411 2.8% School Nurse 0.02%

Movement Mortgage, LLC $80,497,462 385 2.7% Teacher 7.41%

Ark‐La‐Tex Financial (Benchmark Mtg.) $76,374,708 341 2.5% Teacher Aide 0.18%

Stearns Lending, LLC $73,016,575 297 2.4% Veteran 1.82%

CMG Mortgage, Inc. dba CMG Financial $59,463,262 269 2.0% New/Existing Home

Cornerstone Home Lending, Inc. $57,649,179 261 1.9% Existing 71.74%

Guaranteed Rate $57,384,552 275 1.9% New 28.26%

Cardinal Financial Company $56,430,312 264 1.9% Type of Loan

Security National Mortgage Company $54,604,119 263 1.8% Conventional ‐ Purchase 17.46%

Lennar Mortgage, LLC $52,303,186 224 1.7% FHA ‐ Purchase 76.89%

Pulte Mortgage LLC $50,107,727 209 1.7% USDA‐RHS Purchase 1.48%

Thrive Mortgage, LLC $42,289,648 197 1.4% VA ‐ Purchase 4.18%

Wallick and Volk, Inc. $41,835,707 191 1.4% Ethnicity

American Pacific Mortgage Corporation $40,619,512 198 1.3% American Indian/Alaskan Native 0.26%

Highlands Residential Mortgage $40,204,468 182 1.3% Asian/Pacific Islander 1.32%

Town Square Mortgage & Investments, Inc. $39,078,216 197 1.3% Black 12.86%

SWBC Mortgage Corporation $35,509,734 179 1.2% Hispanic 40.01%

Gardner Financial Services, Ltd. $31,547,213 146 1.0% Not Defined 7.00%

Caliber Home Loans, Inc. $31,082,542 145 1.0% Other 4.88%

Hometrust Mortgage Company $29,425,618 159 1.0% White 33.68%

Southwest Funding, LP $29,125,394 135 1.0% Top 20 Originating Counties* # Households

First Continental Mortgage, Ltd. $28,257,767 100 0.9% Harris 2060

Network Funding, LP $26,748,930 123 0.9% Tarrant 1467

Nations Reliable Lending, LLC $23,725,480 116 0.8% Bexar 1376

NTFN, Inc. $20,452,536 97 0.7% Dallas 1123

Synergy One Lending, Inc. $19,623,774 97 0.7% Denton 400

Primary Residential Mortgage, Inc. $19,466,947 98 0.6% Montgomery 383

Mortgage Financial Services, LLC $19,459,932 96 0.6% Kaufman 364

Interlinc Mortgage Services, LLC $19,403,893 85 0.6% El Paso 358

Cherry Creek Mortgage, LLC $18,227,958 79 0.6% Collin 346

Waterstone Mortgage Corporation $17,311,680 79 0.6% Bell 336

First Community Mortgage $16,178,819 93 0.5% Williamson 310

Trinity Oaks Mortgage $15,938,579 67 0.5% Fort Bend 297

Certainty Home Loans, LLC $15,901,839 84 0.5% Ellis 225

Independent Bank $14,906,902 67 0.5% Johnson 214

Crosscountry Mortgage, LLC $13,744,090 63 0.5% Ector 208

Directions Equity, LLC $12,759,753 67 0.4% Travis 207

First United Bank & Trust $12,685,147 60 0.4% Lubbock 207

Mid America Mortgage, Inc. $12,599,194 57 0.4% Brazoria 201

CLM Mortgage, Inc. $12,339,245 49 0.4% Galveston 199

First Bank $12,015,330 50 0.4% Midland 194

Willow Bend Mortgage Company, LLC $11,493,884 55 0.4%

Inspire Home Loans, Inc. $11,485,844 50 0.4%

KBHS Home Loan, LLC $11,189,702 45 0.4%

City First Mortgage Services, LLC $11,126,089 54 0.4%

*Top 20 of all counties statewide. All remaining 

counties served 3737 households.

6



 Homeownership Programs with Down Payment Assistance

January 1 to August 31, 2021

Panorama Mortgage Group, LLC $10,732,333 52 0.4%

Legacy Mortgage, LLC $10,511,399 64 0.3%

First National Bank Mortgage $9,797,367 56 0.3%

Summit Funding, Inc. $9,700,276 41 0.3%

Sente Mortgage Inc. $9,614,951 45 0.3%

Infinity Mortgage Holdings, LLC $9,524,818 51 0.3%

Republic State Mortgage Co. $9,483,528 39 0.3%

DAS Acquisition Company, LLC $9,442,882 37 0.3%

BancorpSouth Bank $8,700,816 42 0.3%

LeaderOne Financial $8,514,011 45 0.3%

Southwest Bank $8,345,659 45 0.3%

FBC Mortgage LLC $8,073,864 39 0.3%

Prosperity Home Mortgage, LLC $7,987,301 37 0.3%

Texas Bank Mortgage Company $7,845,759 40 0.3%

First Financial Bank, N.A. $7,786,578 52 0.3%

Homeside Financial $7,766,263 35 0.3%

American Neighborhood Mortgage $7,725,058 36 0.3%

Patriot Mortgage Company $7,650,355 43 0.3%

First Bank & Trust $7,543,990 44 0.3%

Finance Home America $7,197,820 35 0.2%

M/I Financial, LLC $7,127,966 28 0.2%

American Financial Network, Inc. $6,841,072 32 0.2%

Texas Tech Federal Credit Union $6,357,890 42 0.2%

Loan Simple, Inc. $6,229,379 28 0.2%

Lend Smart Mortgage, LLC $5,967,551 25 0.2%

America's Choice Home Loans, LP $5,910,923 28 0.2%

HomeBridge Financial Services $5,792,360 28 0.2%

Bank of England $5,767,522 27 0.2%

Intercap Lending, Inc. $5,507,947 25 0.2%

Hometown Lenders, Inc. $5,504,781 25 0.2%

Churchill Mortgage Corporation $5,458,474 24 0.2%

Geneva Financial, LLC $5,380,220 24 0.2%

Happy State Bank $5,305,320 35 0.2%

Envoy Mortgage $5,180,978 24 0.2%

Pilgrim Mortgage, LLC $4,956,024 24 0.2%

Change Lending, LLC $4,708,732 25 0.2%

Nations Lending Corporation $4,316,237 22 0.1%

Moria Development/Peoples Mortgage Co $4,044,938 19 0.1%

Rocky Mountain Mortgage Company $3,741,738 22 0.1%

Associated Mortgage Corporation $3,550,005 22 0.1%

Origin Bank $3,531,909 16 0.1%

Goldwater Bank, N.A. $3,489,999 16 0.1%

City Bank Mortgage $3,429,477 18 0.1%

Mortgage Solutions of Colorado, LLC $3,424,538 13 0.1%

New American Funding (Broker Solutions) $3,168,646 18 0.1%

K Hovnanian American Mortgage, LLC $3,057,179 12 0.1%

Midwest Mortgage Associates Corp. $2,937,823 13 0.1%

Hancock Mortgage Partners, LLC $2,927,020 13 0.1%

First Home Bank $2,865,470 14 0.1%

Amerifirst Financial, Inc. $2,639,852 13 0.1%

Planet Home Lending, LLC $2,507,215 12 0.1%

LHM Financial Corp., dba CNN Mortgage $2,482,770 11 0.1%

T2 Financial dba Revolution Mortgage $2,434,202 11 0.1%

Sun West Mortgage Company, Inc. $2,404,201 12 0.1%

Home Financing Unlimited, Inc.(Mission) $2,395,676 8 0.1%

Efinity Financial Inc. $2,256,179 10 0.1%

Open Mortgage LLC $2,199,362 11 0.1%

Michigan Mutual, Inc. $2,182,357 8 0.1%

Cadence Lending Group, Inc. $2,158,664 12 0.1%

Guaranteed Rate Affinity, LLC $2,057,753 11 0.1%

1st Preference Mortgage Corporation $1,978,890 9 0.1%

Paramount Residential Mortgage Group $1,939,015 9 0.1%

University Federal Credit Union $1,921,723 8 0.1%

V.I.P. Independent Mortgage, Inc. $1,867,281 9 0.1% 7



 Homeownership Programs with Down Payment Assistance

January 1 to August 31, 2021

Assurance Financial Group, LLC $1,853,308 9 0.1%

First Centennial Mortgage Corporation $1,736,056 10 0.1%

Union Home Mortgage $1,673,034 8 0.1%

Finance of America Mortgage, LLC $1,615,257 8 0.1%

Jefferson Bank $1,590,307 9 0.1%

First State Bank $1,538,000 8 0.1%

Guardian Mortgage $1,512,495 7 0.1%

Residential Bancorp, Inc. $1,412,953 9 0.0%

FFC Mortgage Corp. dba Home 123 Mortgage $1,326,447 6 0.0%

Bay Equity LLC $1,315,204 6 0.0%

First Community Mortgage, Inc $1,310,470 7 0.0%

Homevantage Mortgage $1,239,570 6 0.0%

International Bank of Commerce $1,001,165 5 0.0%

Victorian Finance LLC $821,739 5 0.0%

LOANPEOPLE, LLC $788,710 3 0.0%

University Lending Group, LLC $757,424 5 0.0%

Peoples Bank $730,006 5 0.0%

Amarillo National Bank $555,746 4 0.0%

Great Western Financial Services, Inc. $498,798 2 0.0%

Canopy Mortgage, LLC $467,377 2 0.0%

Community National Bank $453,499 2 0.0%

Colonial Savings, F.A. $452,892 2 0.0%

Central Bank $432,850 2 0.0%

US Mortgage of Florida $425,156 2 0.0%

First Horizon Bank $353,479 2 0.0%

LendUS, LLC $338,750 2 0.0%

Mann Mortgage, LLC $333,263 2 0.0%

Axia Financial, LLC $302,594 1 0.0%

CalCon Mutual Mortgage LLC $300,700 2 0.0%

The Federal Savings Bank $287,201 1 0.0%

Mortgage300 Corp. $286,807 2 0.0%

Gibraltar Mortgage Services, LLC $240,405 1 0.0%

NFM, INC. $216,015 1 0.0%

Capstar Lending, LLC $203,700 1 0.0%

BM REAL ESTATE SERVICES, INC. $200,785 1 0.0%

Citywide Home Loans, a Utah Corporation $194,413 1 0.0%

Encompass Lending Group, LP $163,817 1 0.0%

Draper and Kramer Mortgage Corporation $147,257 1 0.0%

American Nationwide Mortgage Company $145,500 1 0.0%

TSAHC $100,000 1 0.0%

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. $89,240 1 0.0%

Grand Total $3,013,516,300 14212 100%

8



 Mortgage Credit Certificate Program

January 1 to August 31, 2021

Month Closed # of Loans % Total At a Glance 

Jan 30,928,529$           151 8% Total Amount Originated $395,130,061

Feb 33,295,886$           160 8% Average Annual Income $58,845

Mar 46,892,086$           216 12% Average Purchase Price $221,625

Apr 49,402,346$           229 13% Average Loan Amount $214,047

May 55,105,725$           257 14% Average Household Size 2

Jun 64,181,639$           304 16% Average Interest Rate 3.467%

Jul 56,459,839$           256 14% Program %

Aug 58,864,011$           273 15% Home Sweet Texas 84.13%

Totals $395,130,061 1846 100% Homes for Texas Heroes 15.87%

Lender Closed # of Loans % Total Active Military 0.27%

Everett Financial, dba Supreme Lending $30,608,877 142 7.7% Allied Health Faculty 0.00%

Fairway Independent Mortgage Corporation $25,308,631 123 6.7% Corrections Officer 0.70%

Gateway Mortgage Group, a division of $23,905,746 113 6.1% County Jailer 0.11%

Stearns Lending, LLC $20,800,812 85 4.6% EMS Personnel 0.33%

PrimeLending $17,412,216 80 4.3% Fire Fighter 0.65%

Amcap Mortgage, LTD $14,709,026 71 3.8% Peace Officer 0.87%

Guild Mortgage Corporation $12,978,485 64 3.5% Professional Nurse Faculty 0.87%

Pulte Mortgage LLC $12,318,749 53 2.9% Public Security Officer 0.22%

Guaranteed Rate $12,085,151 60 3.3% School Counselor 0.11%

Movement Mortgage, LLC $11,173,136 53 2.9% School Librarian 0.00%

DHI Mortgage Company, Ltd. $10,554,088 44 2.4% School Nurse 0.00%

SFMC, LP dba Service First Mortgage Comp $10,143,352 48 2.6% Teacher 9.86%

Cardinal Financial Company $10,121,085 46 2.5% Teacher Aide 0.33%

Academy Mortgage Corporation $9,481,038 46 2.5% Veteran 1.57%

Crosscountry Mortgage, LLC $9,363,416 46 2.5% New/Existing Home

Ark‐La‐Tex Financial (Benchmark Mtg.) $8,679,471 38 2.1% Existing 67.82%

loanDepot.com LLC $8,518,640 38 2.1% New 32.18%

CMG Mortgage, Inc. dba CMG Financial $8,044,167 37 2.0% Type of Loan

Hometrust Mortgage Company $7,420,623 41 2.2% Conventional ‐ Purchase 25.73%

First Continental Mortgage, Ltd. $7,147,899 26 1.4% FHA ‐ Purchase 68.36%

Highlands Residential Mortgage $6,206,129 30 1.6% USDA‐RHS Purchase 3.95%

Thrive Mortgage, LLC $5,230,611 23 1.2% VA ‐ Purchase 1.95%

Security National Mortgage Company $5,191,215 25 1.4% Ethnicity

Synergy One Lending, Inc. $4,478,821 22 1.2% American Indian/Alaskan Native 0.24%

Wallick and Volk, Inc. $4,008,976 19 1.0% Asian/Pac Isle 3.99%

Nations Reliable Lending, LLC $3,945,499 21 1.1% Black 14.88%

Interlinc Mortgage Services, LLC $3,532,727 16 0.9% Hispanic 35.47%

Summit Funding, Inc. $3,364,495 14 0.8% Not Defined 7.02%

Caliber Home Loans, Inc. $3,361,390 16 0.9% Other 8.60%

Texas Bank Mortgage Company $3,319,765 17 0.9% White 29.80%

Town Square Mortgage & Investments, Inc. $3,050,203 16 0.9% Top 20 Originating Counties* # of Loans

American Pacific Mortgage Corporation $2,950,444 14 0.8% Harris 330

Southwest Funding, LP $2,909,305 14 0.8% Tarrant 216

Lennar Mortgage, LLC $2,870,339 13 0.7% Bexar 175

Inspire Home Loans, Inc. $2,797,764 12 0.7% Dallas 141

University Federal Credit Union $2,766,399 11 0.6% Williamson 103

Mid America Mortgage, Inc. $2,590,723 12 0.7% Travis 78

BancorpSouth Bank $2,517,955 12 0.7% Denton 66

1st Preference Mortgage Corporation $2,511,213 12 0.7% Kaufman 59

Primary Residential Mortgage, Inc. $2,325,033 11 0.6% Montgomery 50

Sente Mortgage Inc. $2,301,473 11 0.6% Hays 44

CLM Mortgage, Inc. $2,280,284 9 0.5% Fort Bend 38

America's Choice Home Loans, LP $2,153,489 9 0.5% Collin 37

Bank of America, N.A. $2,148,274 11 0.6% Galveston 31

Network Funding, LP $2,109,024 10 0.5% El Paso 28

KBHS Home Loan, LLC $1,979,218 8 0.4% Bell 24

SWBC Mortgage Corporation $1,968,937 10 0.5% Ellis 23

American Neighborhood Mortgage $1,838,427 9 0.5% Hidalgo 23

Gardner Financial Services, Ltd. $1,759,185 9 0.5% Brazoria 23

Paramount Residential Mortgage Group $1,616,206 6 0.3% Johnson 22

Republic State Mortgage Co. $1,463,813 6 0.3% Nueces 20

American Financial Network, Inc. $1,450,316 8 0.4%

Waterstone Mortgage Corporation $1,148,882 5 0.3%

Trinity Oaks Mortgage $1,088,911 5 0.3%

*Top 20 of all counties statewide. All remaining 

counties served 315 households.

9



 Mortgage Credit Certificate Program

January 1 to August 31, 2021

Nations Lending Corporation $1,042,202 5 0.3%

DAS Acquisition Company, LLC $1,039,087 5 0.3%

NTFN, Inc. $1,037,895 5 0.3%

Panorama Mortgage Group, LLC $1,026,817 5 0.3%

Certainty Home Loans, LLC $983,552 5 0.3%

AML Funding, LLC $971,250 4 0.2%

Bank of England $955,790 4 0.2%

Hometown Lenders, Inc. $903,173 4 0.2%

Cornerstone Home Lending, Inc. $863,420 4 0.2%

First Bank & Trust $814,743 7 0.4%

Change Lending, LLC $813,684 5 0.3%

First National Bank Mortgage $811,805 3 0.2%

Open Mortgage LLC $792,744 4 0.2%

First Centennial Mortgage Corporation $773,158 5 0.3%

Barton Creek Lending Group $763,210 3 0.2%

Associated Mortgage Corporation $741,320 6 0.3%

Envoy Mortgage $733,147 4 0.2%

Geneva Financial, LLC $661,908 3 0.2%

Sun West Mortgage Company, Inc. $661,314 3 0.2%

Homeside Financial $611,650 3 0.2%

Home Financing Unlimited, Inc.(Mission) $603,216 2 0.1%

Brazos National Bank $589,390 2 0.1%

Guaranteed Rate Affinity, LLC $560,539 3 0.2%

Intercap Lending, Inc. $535,806 2 0.1%

LHM Financial Corp., dba CNN Mortgage $486,033 2 0.1%

City First Mortgage Services, LLC $480,097 2 0.1%

Colonial Savings, F.A. $431,125 2 0.1%

Moria Development/Peoples Mortgage Co $424,375 2 0.1%

Jefferson Bank $392,848 3 0.2%

Mortgage Financial Services, LLC $385,291 2 0.1%

New American Funding (Broker Solutions) $379,990 2 0.1%

First State Bank $377,465 2 0.1%

Directions Equity, LLC $376,678 2 0.1%

Homevantage Mortgage $353,517 2 0.1%

Mann Mortgage, LLC $333,263 2 0.1%

Willow Bend Mortgage Company, LLC $325,516 2 0.1%

LeaderOne Financial $307,956 2 0.1%

Taylor Morrison Home Funding, Inc. $306,297 1 0.1%

Assurance Financial Group, LLC $304,385 1 0.1%

Happy State Bank $271,982 1 0.1%

M/I Financial, LLC $268,707 1 0.1%

Midwest Mortgage Associates Corp. $237,553 1 0.1%

First Bank $236,634 1 0.1%

Independent Bank $228,990 1 0.1%

LOANPEOPLE, LLC $218,250 1 0.1%

NFM, INC. $216,015 1 0.1%

Goldwater Bank, N.A. $208,160 1 0.1%

BM REAL ESTATE SERVICES, INC. $200,785 1 0.1%

K&G Capital Mortgage, LLC $199,687 1 0.1%

HomeBridge Financial Services $196,377 1 0.1%

Origin Bank $196,278 1 0.1%

Planet Home Lending, LLC $194,413 1 0.1%

City Bank Mortgage $191,468 1 0.1%

Loan Simple, Inc. $180,456 1 0.1%

Mortgage Solutions LP $179,450 1 0.1%

First Community Mortgage $162,993 1 0.1%

Finance of America Mortgage, LLC $162,600 1 0.1%

American Nationwide Mortgage Company $145,500 1 0.1%

Roberson Mortgage Inc. $145,319 1 0.1%

Amarillo National Bank $122,735 1 0.1%

Total Committed $395,130,061 1846 100%

10



Tab B 
Development Finance Report 

 
 

11



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
Development Finance Programs Report 

November 2021 
 

Affordable Communities of Texas Program (ACT) 

This past month staff has been focusing on property acquisitions for the ACT Land Bank. TSAHC is under 
contract for a property, located near downtown San Antonio, that was made available through the 
National Community Stabilization Trust’s First Look Program.    
 
Mechanical inspections are complete for housing construction at 1314 N. Center in San Antonio; staff 
estimates a mid-November substantial construction completion date. The home at 1418 N. Navidad, also 
in San Antonio, is estimated to be complete by late December.  
 
Staff has progressed the redevelopment of its ACT property in Greenville and is awaiting the City approved 
and recorded re-plat that converts this lot into three single-family lots intended for single-family 
affordable homeownership to households at or below 80% area median income.  
 
Here is a summary of the past month’s portfolio activity:  
 

Program 
Portfolio as of 

October 1, 
2021 

Transferred Sold 

Portfolio as 
of 

November  
1, 2021 

Current Portfolio Value 

ACT Land Bank 17  1 16 $136,631.60 

ACT Land Trust 1   1 $650,000.00 

Totals 18   17 $786,631.60 

 
Our current pipeline report:  

• 1 property under contract  

• 6 properties listed for sale  

• 5 homes under construction  

• 2 properties leased to Local Partner 

• 2 properties in predevelopment 

• 1 property searching for a Local Partner 
 

Texas Housing Impact Fund 

Staff is working to close on the renewal of a revolving line of credit to Legacy CDC, in the amount of 
$600,000, as approved at the October board meeting. Legacy CDC has been involved in TSAHC’s ACT and 
THIF programs since 2013 and has utilized approximately $1.57 million in loan capital for the 
construction/rehabilitation of 30 single-family homes primarily located in Jefferson County.  
 
Multifamily Bond Program 

On October 18, TSAHC successfully closed on the W. Leo Daniels Apartments project. The project will 
renovate 100 units for seniors in Houston. The project is the first of two transactions with developers ITEX 
Group and Jeshurun Development to close this year. Staff has also submitted a Notice of Intent to Issue 
Bonds to the Texas Bond Review Board for the Sandpiper Cove transaction and anticipates receiving 
approval to move forward with closing by November 19th.   

12



Tab C 
Monthly Financial Reports 

13



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Net Position (unaudited)
As of September 30, 2021

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,202,124      
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 5,662,565      
Short-term Investments, at Fair Market Value 2,314,999      
Accrued interest 39,920           
Custodial cash and cash equivalents 217,473         

Investments, at fair value 6,489,625      
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 2,674,792      
Accrued interest receivable 64,344           
Loans receivable,  current portion 67,779           
Notes receivable, current portion 5,419,981      
Downpayment assistance, current portion 553,010         
Prepaid expenses 267,504         

Total current assets 30,974,116    

Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable, net of uncollectible amounts of $247 283,787         
Notes receivable, net of allowance for loss $450,852 148,054,789  
Investments, at fair market value 34,159,642    
Mortgage servicing rights, net of accumulated amortization of $2,595,649 132,412         
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $616,396 5,987,380      
Owned real estate, federal & other programs, net of amortization of $1,593,822 9,795,070      
Downpayment assistance 160,229         
Restricted investments held by bond trustee, at fair market value 27,374,030    

Total noncurrent assets 225,947,339  

Total assets $ 256,921,455  

(continued)

14



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Net Position (unaudited)
As of September 30, 2021

Liabilities 
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 407,441         
Notes payable, current portion 365,330         
Custodial reserve funds 217,473         
Other current liabilities 1,781,652      
Payable from restricted assets held by bond trustee:

Revenue bonds payable, current portion 600,000         
Accrued interest on revenue bonds 114,608         

Total current liabilities 3,486,504      

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable 2,104,752      
Revenue bonds payable 29,091,955    
Unearned revenue 2,804,358      

Total noncurrent liabilities 34,001,065    

Total liabilities 37,487,569    

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred revenue 152,934         

Total deferred inflows of resources 152,934         

Net Position
Invested in capital assets 5,987,380      
Restricted for:

Debt service 3,182,574      
Other purposes 3,115,599      

Unrestricted 206,995,399  

Total net position 219,280,952  

Total liabilities and net position $ 256,921,455

15



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (unaudited)
For the 1 Month Ending September 30, 2021 

Operating Revenues:
     Interest and investment income $ 218,304         
     Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (286,672)        
     Single family income 14,344,980    
     Asset oversight and compliance fees 33,698           
     Rental program income 69,225           
     Multifamily income 85,923           
     Public support:
          Federal & state grants 2,816             
          Contributions 35,024           
     Other operating revenue 8,656             

Total operating revenues $ 14,511,954    

Operating Expenses:
     Interest expense on bonds and notes payable $ 6,492             
     Program and loan administration 29,459           
     Salaries, wages and payroll related costs 343,929         
     Professional fees and services 16,544           
     Depreciation and amortization 57,763           
     Office expense and maintenance 9,099             
     Travel and meals 2,366             
     Other operating expenses 58,485           

524,137         

Net income 13,987,817    

Total net position, beginning 205,293,135  

Total net position, ending $ 219,280,952  

Total operating expenses

16



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Budget Report

September 30, 2021

 Annual 

Budget  Actual 

Percent of 

Annual 

Budget  Reference 

Revenue

Single Family Program Revenue 19,692,000    2,830,277       14% 

Lending Program Revenue 6,251,000      35,914            1%

Multifamily Program Revenue 1,203,000      109,740          9%

Rental Program Revenue 1,237,000      49,397            4%

Federal & State Grants 1,036,000      15,437            1%

Grants, Donations & Other Awards 385,000         35,024            9%

Land Bank Revenue 195,000         7,343              4%

Servicing Revenue 96,000           10,564            11% k

Investment Revenue     1,535,000      184,439          12% l

     Total Revenue 31,630,000    3,278,135       10%

Expenditures

Texas Housing Impact Fund 9,975,000      -                 0%

Affordable Communities of Texas 7,700,000      275                 0%

Other Program Expenditures 4,310,000      65,444            2%

Salaries & Payroll Related Expenditures 4,300,000      343,929          8%

Grants 1,825,000      -                 0%

Principal & Interest on Notes Payable 1,748,000      10,236            1%

Professional Services 636,000         16,544            3%

Marketing 180,000         3,643              2%

Insurance 257,000         12,883            5%

Travel & Meals 118,000         2,366              2%

Furniture, Equipment, & Software 56,000           845                 2%

Building Maintenance 54,000           3,741              7%

Professional Dues, Conferences & Training 56,000           421                 1%

Sponsorships 20,000           1,000              5%

Communication 28,000           1,900              7%

Bank Fees & Charges 19,000           1,565              8%

Publications, Subscriptions & Other Office Expenditures15,000           1,094              7%

Freight, Delivery, Postage 12,000           523                 4%

Printing & Office Supplies 5,000             314                 6%

     Total Expenditures 31,314,000    466,723          

   

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures 316,000         2,811,412       

Average Expected Percent Received/Expended = 8%

17



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Budget Report

September 30, 2021

Explanations

 There is a lag time of approximately 60 to 90 days between he time a reservation is made 

and when the Corporation receives the income associated with a loan.  The budget is based 

on the assumption that we will be reserving an average of $20 to $25 million each day.  

The income received in September 2021 is associated with loans made earlier in fiscal year 

2021 when  reservations were higher at approximately $35 million each day.  We expect

this line item will be on target by year end.  

k Servicing Revenue is higher than budgeted due to the payoff of a second lien loan during 

September. 

l Investment revenue varies from month to month with some month's having more income than 

others depending on maturities, refinancing of loans in mortgage backed securities and other 

factors.  We anticipate that this line item will be on target by year end.

18



Tab 1 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board 

Meeting held on October 13, 2021. 

19



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 
BOARD MEETING 

 
The Governing Board of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (TSAHC)  

 
October 13, 2021  

10:30 a.m. 
 

Summary of Minutes 
 
Call to Order 
Roll Call   
Certification of Quorum 
 
The Board Meeting of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) was called to 
order by Bill Dietz, Chair, at 10:34 a.m., on October 13, 2021, at the offices of Texas State Affordable 
Housing Corporation, 6701 Shirley Avenue, Austin, TX 78752.  Roll Call certified that a quorum was 
present. 
 
Members Present:  
Bill Dietz, Chair 
Valerie Cardenas, Vice Chair 
Andy Williams, Member 
Courtney Johnson Rose, Member 
Lemuel Williams, Member 
 
Guests Present:  
Blake Roberts, PFM 
Scott Marks, Coats Rose 
 
President’s Report                                 David Long 
 
See page 5 in the official transcript. 
 
Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 

September 15, 2021. 
 
Mr. Lemuel Williams made a motion to approve the minutes of the Board meeting held September 15, 2021. 
Ms. Cardenas seconded the motion. Mr. Dietz asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was taken, 
and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
See page 10 in the official transcript. 
 
Tab 2 Presentation, discussion, and possible approval of a resolution approving a Texas Housing 

Impact Fund second lien bridge loan to Kiva East, LLC in an amount not to exceed 
$1,000,000 for the Kiva East Apartments. 

 
Presented by Cassandra Ramirez, Development Finance Manager 
 
Ms. Rose made a motion to approve a resolution approving a Texas Housing Impact Fund second lien bridge 
loan to Kiva East, LLC in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000 for the Kiva East Apartments. Mr. Lemuel 

20



Williams seconded the motion. Mr. Dietz asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was taken, and 
the motion passed unanimously.   
 
See page 11 in the official transcript. 
 
Tab 3 Presentation, discussion, and possible approval of a resolution approving a Texas Housing 

Impact Fund second lien bridge loan to June West, LLC in an amount not to exceed 
$1,200,000 for the June West Apartments. 

 
Presented by Cassandra Ramirez, Development Finance Manager 
 
Ms. Rose made a motion to approve a resolution approving a Texas Housing Impact Fund second lien bridge 
loan to June West, LLC in an amount not to exceed $1,200,000 for the June West Apartments. Mr. Andy 
Williams seconded the motion. Mr. Dietz asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was taken. The 
motion passed unanimously.   
  
See page 14 in the official transcript. 
 
Tab 4 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution authorizing a Texas 

Housing Impact Fund revolving line of credit construction loan to Legacy Community 
Development Corporation in an amount not to exceed $600,000. 

 
Presented by Cassandra Ramirez, Development Finance Manager 
 
Mr. Andy Williams made a motion to approve a Resolution authorizing a Texas Housing Impact Fund 
revolving line of credit construction loan to Legacy Community Development Corporation in an amount not to 
exceed $600,000. Ms. Cardenas seconded the motion. Mr. Dietz asked for public comment and none was given. 
A vote was taken, and the motion passed unanimously.   
 
See page 19 in the official transcript. 
 
Tab 5 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Publication for Public Comment of 

the Guidelines, Scoring Criteria and Targeted Housing Needs for the Allocation of 
Qualified Residential Rental Project Tax Exempt Bond Funds under the Multifamily 
Housing Private Activity Bond Program Request for Proposals and the 501(c)(3) Bond 
Program Policies for Calendar Year 2022. 

 
Presented by David Danenfelzer, Senior Director, Development Finance 
 
Ms. Cardenas made a motion to approve the Publication for Public Comment of the Guidelines, Scoring Criteria 
and Targeted Housing Needs for the Allocation of Qualified Residential Rental Project Tax Exempt Bond 
Funds under the Multifamily Housing Private Activity Bond Program Request for Proposals and the 501(c)(3) 
Bond Program Policies for Calendar Year 2022. Mr. Lemuel Williams seconded the motion. Mr. Dietz asked 
for public comment and no public comment was given. A vote was taken, and the motion passed unanimously.    
 
See page 23 in the official transcript. 
 
 
Tab 6 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution authorizing the issuance of 

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation Multifamily Mortgage Housing Revenue 
Notes (Sandpiper Cove Apartments) Series 2021A‐1 and 2021A‐2, a Funding Loan 

21



Agreement, a Borrower Project Loan Agreement, an Asset Oversight, Compliance and 
Security Agreement and a Regulatory Agreement. 

 
Presented by David Danenfelzer, Senior Director, Development Finance 
 
Public Comment 
Bobken Simonians 
Loia Wilkerson 
Gladys Richardson 
Jessica Blanks 
David Wheaton 
Ericka Bowman 
Clarence Graham 
Carlita Johnson 
Samson Babalola 
 
Ms. Cardenas made a motion to approve a Resolution authorizing the issuance of Texas State Affordable 
Housing Corporation Multifamily Mortgage Housing Revenue Notes (Sandpiper Cove Apartments) Series 
2021A‐1 and 2021A‐2, a Funding Loan Agreement, a Borrower Project Loan Agreement, an Asset Oversight, 
Compliance and Security Agreement and a Regulatory Agreement. Ms. Rose seconded the motion. Mr. Dietz 
asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was taken, and the motion passed with 3 votes in favor 
and 2 against.   
 
See page 34 in the official transcript. 
 
 
Announcements and Closing Comments 
 
Mr. Long and Board Members tentatively scheduled the next Board Meeting for November 17, 2021, at 
10:30am. 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
Mr. Dietz adjourned the meeting at 12:22pm.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted by________________________________________________ 
Rebecca DeLeon, Corporate Secretary 

22



Tab 2 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Annual Independent 

Financial Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2021. 

23



Government Auditing Standards

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 24



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 25



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 26



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 27



Government Auditing Standards

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 28



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 29



Government Auditing Standards

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 30



Required Supplementary Information 

Other Information 

Code of Federal Regulations Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 31



Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 32



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 33



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 34



all
accrual basis of accounting

net position

financial position increases or decreases
financial health

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 35



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 36



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 37



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 38



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 39



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 40



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 41



(continued)

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 42



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 43



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 44



(continued)

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 45



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 46



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 47



The Financial Reporting Entity

Texas Government Code

Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Governments Basic Financial Statements - Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis for State and Local Governments: Omnibus Certain
Financial Statement Note Disclosures

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 48



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 49



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 50



Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position

Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 51



 Fair Value 
Measurement and Application

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 52



Leases

Conduit Debt Obligation

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 53



Subscription-Based Information 
Technology Arrangements

Fair Value Measurement and Application

exit

securities

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 54



market approach

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 55



securities

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 56



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 57



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 58



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 59



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 60



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 61



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 62



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 63



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 64



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 65



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 66



67



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 68



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 69



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 70



T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
a 

dr
af

t f
or

 in
te

rn
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

an
d 

is
 n

ot
 in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r 
ex

te
rn

al
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n.

71



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 72



Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 73



Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 74



OMB Compliance Supplement 

Government Auditing Standards
Code of Federal 

Regulations Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 75



deficiency in internal control over compliance

material weakness in internal control over compliance

significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 76



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 77



Code of Federal 
Regulations Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 78



This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 79



Government Auditing Standards

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 80



Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards 

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 81



Tab 3 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Amendments to the Texas 

Community Capital (TCC) Organizational By-Laws to Adhere to U.S. Treasury’s 
Community Development Financial intuitions (CDFI) Certification Requirements, 

and Other Items as Presented. 

82



       

    Texas Community Capital  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 
Presentation,  Discussion  and  Possible  Approval  of  Amendments  to  the  Texas  Community  Capital  (TCC) 
Organizational  By‐Laws  to  Adhere  to  U.S.  Treasury’s  Community  Development  Financial  intuitions  (CDFI) 
Certification Requirements, and Other Items as Presented. 
 
Summary 
On October 8th, TCC was contacted by the U.S. Treasury’s CDFI program staff regarding changes needed to the 
TCC by‐laws prior to approval of the CDFI certification. TCC’s board met on October 13 to discuss and adopt the 
following changes to Article III of the By‐Laws.  
 

The Board of Directors will consist of no fewer than five and no more than nine Directors. No more 
than three one‐third of the Directors shall be appointed and approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (“TSAHC Board”), a Texas non‐profit corporation and no 
more than three one‐third of the Directors shall be appointed and approved by the Board of Directors 
of the Texas Association of Community Development Corporations (“TACDC Board”), a Texas non‐profit 
corporation. The TACDC Board,  together with  the TSAHC Board, are heretofore  referred  to as  the 
“Appointing Authorities” and each individually an “Appointing Authority.” Up to three The remaining 
Directors  shall be appointed by majority vote by  the acting Directors of  the Board. Upon majority 
resolution of the Board of Directors and approval by each of the TSAHC Board and the TACDC Board, 
the number of Directors may be  increased or decreased  from time  to  time, but  in no event shall a 
decrease have the effect of shortening the term of an incumbent Director. In the event a decrease in 
the number of Directors is approved TSAHC shall short the term of an incumbent Director in order to 
maintain  the  one‐third  limit  on  its  participation.  The  persons  serving  as  directors  at  the  time  of 
adoption of this amendment to the Bylaws shall continue to serve until such time as their replacements 
have been named and seated. The Executive Director of the Corporation, if one is selected, shall serve 
as an exofficio non‐voting member of the Board of Directors. All other employees of the Corporation 
are ineligible to serve on the Board of Directors. 

 
No other changes were made. Pursuant to TCC’s By‐Laws, any changes to Article III require ratification by both 
the TSAHC and TACDC boards.  
 
It  should be noted  that  the proposed  changes were  submitted  to  the CDFI program  and TCC  received  its 
certification as a CDFI on Oct. 15.   
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff  recommends  that  the  Board  approve  the  amendments  to  the  Texas  Community  Capital  By‐Laws  as 
presented. 
 

83



Tab 4 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Amended Policies for the Texas 
Housing Impact Fund. 

84



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      1 
 

1. Policy. This policy has been adopted by the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) 
in order to organize and codify its administration of the Texas Housing Impact Fund (the “Fund”). The Fund 
supports the Corporation’s mission to promote equal access to safe, decent, and affordable housing with an 
emphasis on serving rural and underserved markets. The Fund provides financing to non‐profit and for‐
profit developers for the purpose of increasing and preserving the stock of affordable housing throughout 
the state of Texas.   

2. Source of Funds. The primary source of monies available to the Fund are  investments made by public and 
private  entities  into  the  Fund’s  loan  fund.  The Corporation  also  commits  its own  funds  to  the  Fund  and 
borrows funds from public or private entities. All loan commitments will be conditioned upon the availability 
of funds.  

3. Eligible Activities. The Corporation uses the Fund for: 

a. Construction  Loans:  Short‐term  financing  for  acquisition,  construction  or  rehabilitation  of  affordable 
multifamily rental housing; 

b. Permanent Loans: Long‐term  financing  for affordable multi‐family  rental housing  that has been newly 
built or rehabilitated; 

c. Revolving Lines of Credit: Financing for the acquisition, construction and/or rehabilitation of single‐family 
homes for sale to households of low and moderate income; and 

d. Any other purpose deemed suitable under the Fund policies and approved by the Corporation’s Board.  

4. Use of Loan Proceeds. Loan proceeds may be used for the acquisition of real property, on‐site infrastructure, 
and  the  construction  or  rehabilitation  of  housing  units.  Loan  proceeds  may  not  be  used  for  off‐site 
infrastructure,  administrative  costs,  general  operating  costs,  or  developer  fees  and  profits.  Eligible 
predevelopment and soft cost expenses may include, but are not limited to, environmental surveys, market 
assessments, engineering fees, architect fees, or other expenses approved by the Corporation.   

5. Application Process. The Corporation accepts loan applications for eligible activities (“Developments”) on an 
ongoing basis. The Corporation will publish an application package to its website. Borrowers should download 
and  complete  the  application  pursuant  to  the  guidelines  included  in  the  application.  At  a  minimum, 
applications must be completed in the following manner: 

a. All applications must be signed and dated as required in the application package;  

b. The application submission fee must be submitted with the complete package; 

c. Applications must be typewritten on the printed application provided by the Corporation. Handwritten 
applications will not be accepted: and 

d. Electronic  copies of  an  application must be  readable using Adobe PDF Reader  software.  Each  tab or 
attachment must be properly bookmarked. Scanned documents must be legible and printable on standard 
11” by 8.5” paper. 

6. Application Review.  

a. Applications will be reviewed in the order they are received. Applications will be reviewed for Threshold 
Criteria  (defined  below)  and,  if  thresholds  are  met,  Underwriting  Standards  (defined  below).  The 
Corporation may delay the consideration of an application for an award if there are errors, omissions or 
insufficient documentation that the Corporation deems necessary to complete its review. If an application 

85



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      2 
 

fails  to  fulfill  the minimum  Threshold  Criteria  for  the  Fund,  the  application will  be  terminated  and 
notification will be provided to the borrower.  

b. Applications  that  pass  the  threshold  and  underwriting  review  processes  will  be  presented  to  the 
Corporation’s Loan Committee  (defined below).  If there are  insufficient  funds available at the time an 
application is brought to the Loan Committee the application may be held for a period of no longer than 
90 days and reconsidered for funding if funds become available. After 90‐days if funds are not available, 
the Corporation will return the application or commitment fees submitted by a borrower. 

7. Threshold Criteria. All applications must meet the following minimum threshold criteria (“Threshold Criteria”) 
to be presented to the Loan Committee: 

a. Eligible Borrowers. Any reputable and experienced entity engaged  in affordable housing Development, 
including  non‐profit  or  for‐profit  builders,  developers,  partnerships,  limited  liability  companies, 
municipalities, housing authorities, or other business entities as approved by the Board of Directors (the 
“Board”)  are eligible  to  apply  for  funding.  The Corporation will not  fund  real persons or entities not 
registered with  the  Texas  Secretary of  State. All  borrowers must  also provide or meet  the  following 
requirements: 

i. All borrowers must be registered with the Texas Secretary of State at least 30 days prior to the 
execution of a loan commitment; 

ii. All borrowers must have a current certification of corporate status from the Texas Secretary of 
State and certificate of account status from the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts; 

iii. All non‐profit borrowers must have valid and current  IRS determination  letters regarding their 
status as a 501(c)3 or (c)4 nonprofit corporation, along with a confirmation that the corporation 
is registered with the Texas Secretary of State as a non‐profit; and 

iv. Borrowers must demonstrate: 

A. An acceptable history of repaying credit in a timely manner; 

B. A reasonable plan for use and repayment of loan proceeds; 

C. Payments of all taxes, license fees and other fees required by applicable state and federal 
statutes; and 

D. Other requirements which may be applied on a case‐by‐case basis by the Corporation 

b. Experience  Threshold. All borrowers must be  able  to demonstrate  sufficient  experience  in  residential 
construction,  the  development  of  infrastructure,  and  marketing  of  affordable  housing.    Proof  of 
experience may be demonstrated through evidence of past completed developments, partnerships with 
experienced  developers,  and  other  development  experience  as  approved  by  the  Corporation.  At  a 
minimum, a borrower must have developed a number of homes or housing units equal to at least one‐
half  (1/2)  of  the  number  of  units  in  the  borrower’s  application.    The  Corporation may  consider  the 
experience of a borrower’s staff and board in determining the borrower’s experience.  

c. Affordability  Threshold.  Affordability  requirements  will  be  based  on  the  Corporation’s  statutory 
requirements  and  reasonable  targets  above  the  statutory minimums.  Affordability  requirements  are 
different  for  Developments  that  target  homeownership  versus  rental  opportunities  for  low‐income 
households. At a minimum the Corporation will require properties targeting rental housing to: 

86



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      3 
 

i. Reserve at least 20% of the total units in the Development for persons or families earning 50% of 
the area median  income  (“Extremely Low‐Income”), as determined by  the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development  (HUD), based on the size of the unit and number of persons 
occupying the unit; or 

ii. Reserve at least 40% of the total units in the Development for persons or families earning 60% of 
the area median income (“Very Low‐Income”), as determined by HUD, based on the size of the 
unit and number of persons occupying the unit. 

For Developments targeting the renovation or construction of homes for sale to low‐income households 
the Corporation will require the following affordability standards: 

 

iii. At least 51% of the homes renovated or constructed using a revolving line of credit will be sold to 
households earning 80% or less of the area median income (“AMI”) or Statewide Median Income, 
whichever  is greater.   The Corporation may require a minimum number of households earning 
80% or less of the AMI (“Qualified Households”) based on the percentage of funds provided by 
the Corporation,  the nature of  the  investment, and any other  factors  the Corporation deems 
necessary (the “Affordability Requirement”).  

iv. All for‐sale housing developed, regardless of whether the buyer is a Qualified Household or not, 
must be financed with fixed rate  loans.   Qualified Households must obtain homebuyer training 
from a certified Housing Counseling Agency. No homes may be sold with the use of non‐profit or 
developer grants or down payment assistance  that exceeds 5% of  the appraised value of  the 
home, unless otherwise approved  in writing by  the Corporation. Borrowers  that do not  fulfill 
Affordability Requirements will be subject to additional fees, fines or payments as determined by 
the loan agreement.  

v. A Land Use Restriction Agreement (the “LURA”) or other restrictive covenant may be recorded 
with each housing unit and/or parcel of land developed.  

d. Development Threshold. To ensure  that working  families have safe, decent affordable housing, and  to 
ensure long‐term affordability and usability, homes must meet the following standards:  

i. All Developments, at the time of acquisition or completion of construction or rehabilitation, must 
meet all  local building codes for the  jurisdiction where they are  located.  If the Development  is 
located in an area where no building codes are in place or have been adopted, the Development 
must meet the most recently published International Residential Code, or International Building 
Code; 

ii. All Developments, at the time of acquisition or completion of construction or rehabilitation, must 
be  compliant with  the Federal Fair Housing Act Accessibility  Standards, Titles  II and  III of  the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Texas Minimum Construction Standards and §2306.514 
(visitability guidelines) of the Texas Government Code. Borrowers must submit to the Corporation 
a certification from the project architect, engineer or other third‐party building inspector that the 
proposed Development will meet or exceed the above listed accessibility requirements; 

iii. All Developments, at the time of acquisition or completion of construction or rehabilitation, must 
be compliant with the U.S. Department of Energy’s Energy Star Fund, as confirmed by a certified 

87



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      4 
 

third‐party Home Energy Rating System (“HERS”) inspector or as certified to by the Development’s 
architect or engineer; and 

iv. All Developments, at the time of acquisition or completion of construction or rehabilitation, must 
have sidewalks, driveways and streets that are compliant with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and Fair Housing Accessibility Standards.  

e. Environmental  Threshold.  The  Corporation  will  consider  environmental  or  site‐specific  conditions, 
including, but not  limited  to,  adjacent or nearby  land  uses  in determining  the  risk of  environmental 
hazards. If the Corporation, in its sole determination, finds that an environmental hazard creates a risk to 
the health and well‐being of Qualified Households, an application may be denied funding. The Corporation 
will also require the submission of a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment for multi‐site or multifamily 
rental developments that involve the construction of more than 4 units of housing. If applicable, a Phase 
II  Environmental  Site  Assessment  may  be  required.    At  loan  closing  borrowers  must  agree  to  an 
environmental indemnity, in favor of the Corporation, in a form provided by the Corporation’s Counsel.  

f. Relocation Threshold. The Corporation will not award funds to any Development which may cause the 
displacement of a Qualified Household. Borrowers may propose Developments that temporarily displace 
Qualified Households, as long as there are sufficient funds to assist Qualified Households with temporary 
relocation costs. 

g. Aggregate Exposure Limits.  

i. The Corporation will maintain a maximum aggregate exposure limit (“Aggregate Exposure Limit”) 
of $3 million dollars. This policy will limit any single borrower, or group of related entities, from 
receiving outstanding  loans from the Fund  in an amount greater than the Aggregate Exposure 
Limit.  The  Aggregate  Exposure  Limit  excludes  loans made  through  one  of  the  Corporation’s 
conduit lending channels.  

ii. Aggregate Exposure Limit risk policies are made with the understanding that in instances where 
the Corporation is asked to make an additional loan commitment to a strong borrower that would 
exceed the exposure limit, (1) the Board may permit a policy exception, or (2) the Corporation will 
make  an  effort  to  refer  the borrower  to other  sources of  financial  assistance.   Moreover,  in 
instances where the risk exposure limit is not exceeded, but the Corporation’s fund balances are 
exhausted,  the  Corporation  may  seek  external  sources  of  loan  guarantees  or  may  require 
additional requirements on the collateral position. 

iii. For purposes of  this Policy,  loans will be  grouped by borrower  and  related  entities.   Related 
entities  will  include  those  corporations,  partnerships  and  limited  partnerships  where  the 
borrower or sponsor has an equity stake.  It will also include those loans where the borrower or 
sponsor is a guarantor. 

8. Underwriting Standards. The Corporation will review all applications that meet Threshold Criteria, using the 
following underwriting standards (“Underwriting Standards”). Borrowers must understand that Underwriting 
Standards are subjective in many aspects. The Corporation’s lending activities are generally subject to greater 
risks than typically experienced by conventional lenders and therefore must utilize criteria that are not easily 
measurable.  The Corporation’s  review process will  consider  five  key  factors  to determine  feasibility of  a 
Development: 

88



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      5 
 

a. Financial  Feasibility.  The  Corporation  will  thoroughly  evaluate  the  Development  budget,  cash  flow 
analysis, and pro forma to determine the feasibility of each Development. The Corporation will use the 
following minimum standards to determine feasibility: 

i. Loan  to Value Ratio  (LTV): Generally,  the maximum  LTV  for  all  loans  is 80%. The  LTV will be 
calculated on the amount of the loan request and the total appraised value of land and completed 
on‐site improvements including housing units. The Corporation may consider other loan‐to‐value 
limits based on financial strength and the amount of guarantees provided by the Applicant; 

ii. Sales and  Income Projections. For applications to develop for‐sale housing, the cash flows and 
proforma sales projections must demonstrate that 100% of the principal balance and interest can 
be repaid prior to the Maturity Date (as defined herein) of the loan. The Corporation may include 
extensions to the Maturity Date in its calculation of sales projections;  

iii. Debt Coverage Ratio. All rental Developments must maintain, for the life of the loan or 15 years, 
whichever  is  longer,  a minimum debt  coverage  ratio  (DCR) of  at  least  1.15.  The Corporation 
reserves the right to raise the minimum DCR requirement based on the source of funds to be used 
and the perceived risk of the transaction;  

iv. Vacancy Rate. For rental Developments, the Corporation will use a minimum vacancy rate of 7% 
for all  loans. Developments with 100% Project Based Section 8 Vouchers may be underwritten 
using a vacancy rate of 5%. The Corporation may use higher vacancy rates based on the current 
and  historical  rate  reported  in  the  third‐party  market  analysis  or  data  obtained  by  the 
Corporation;  

v. Expense  Ratio.  For  rental Developments,  the  Corporation will  limit  the  amount  of  operating 
expenses to 70% of effective gross income (“EGI”) for the life of the loan or 15 years, whichever 
is  less.  The  calculation  of  operating  expenses  and  EGI  will  be  determined  solely  by  the 
Corporation; 

vi. Repayment  Sources.  The  Corporation  will  consider  the  availability  of  repayment  financing 
commitments  in  its analysis. Borrowers must submit executed commitment agreements to the 
Corporation  for  consideration  in  underwriting.  The  Corporation will work with  borrowers  to 
review alternative‐financing structures; and  

vii. Reserve Requirements. All rental Developments are subject to the following escrows and reserve 
accounts:  

A. Escrows may be required for property taxes and insurance; 

B. Replacement  Reserves  for  Developments  involving  the  permanent  financing  of 
multifamily  rental developments will be: $250 per unit per year  for new  construction 
Developments; or $300 per unit per year for rehabilitation Developments; and 

C. Operating Reserves  in  the amount of 2  to 6 months of operating expenses plus debt 
service.  

b. Collateral. The Corporation strives to make loans that are fully collateralized through real property, letters 
of  credit,  or  other  financial  instruments.  The  Corporation  may  consider  unsecured  loans  for 
predevelopment lending on a case‐by‐case basis.  In the case of real property, the Corporation will obtain 

89



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      6 
 

a primary or subordinate mortgage lien on the subject real estate with full recourse to borrower evidenced 
by a security agreement and UCC‐1 filings.  Assignments of rents, leases and contracts affecting real estate 
may also be taken.  When appropriate, a secondary source of collateral repayment may also be identified 
(e.g., personal guarantees, assignments or other appropriate security) if the Corporation determines that 
its primary source of collateral could deteriorate. 

c. Financial Strength. In order to assess the financial strength of every Borrower, the Corporation will require 
all Borrowers to submit the most recent 2‐years of audited financial statements, and year‐to‐date balance 
sheet statements.  If the Borrower does not conduct an annual corporate audit, 2‐ years of  income tax 
statements, an Independent Accountants’ Review Report with financial statements for the most recent 2‐
years, and year‐to‐date balance sheet and income statement will be acceptable.  

Based on the Corporation’s review of the financial statements, Borrowers may be required to provide a 
personal guarantee or letter of credit to meet the Corporation’s financial strength requirements.  

d. Market Conditions. The Corporation will require the submission of market conditions data by borrowers, 
and  may  conduct  its  own  assessment  of  market  conditions  to  determine  the  feasibility  of  the 
Development.  Market  data  that  will  be  required  includes  current  information  on  demographics, 
population growth, employment  trends, median homes prices, zoning requirements, absorption rates, 
and any other indictors of the market capacity for the Development.  

e. Community Impact. The Corporation will evaluate the Development in the context of the Corporation’s 
organizational mission.  Specifically, the Corporation will evaluate the degree of housing need in the local 
community and  the number of units  to be produced by  the Development.   The Corporation will give 
priority to Developments that include short‐term LURAs, equity limitation provisions or other mechanisms 
that ensure the affordability of housing units. 

9. Targeted  Housing  Needs.  In  order  to  increase  the  production  of  housing  located  in  rural  areas  and/or 
accessible to persons with disabilities, the Corporation will provide an interest rate reduction in the amount 
of  .25%  from  the minimum  interest  required  in  this policy  if  the Development meets one or both of  the 
following standards:  

a. Rural development: The property is located within an area that is: (a) outside the boundaries of a primary 
metropolitan statistical area (PMSA) or metropolitan statistical area (MSA); or (b) within the boundaries 
of a PMSA or MSA, if the area has a population of 20,000 or less and does not share a boundary with an 
urban area; or  

b. Accessible  rental Development: All ground  floor units are designed  to be accessible  for persons with 
mobility  impairments and at  least 30% of all units  in the development are accessible  for persons with 
mobility impairments and/or visual and hearing impairments. For for‐sale Developments all single‐family 
new  construction  homes  are  required  to  be  accessible  pursuant  to  the  Corporation’s  development 
standards.  

10. Awards. Once  the Corporation has determined  that  an  application has passed  all  Threshold Criteria  and 
Underwriting Standards the application will be submitted to the Loan Committee made up of an appointee of 
the Board, and the Corporation’s President, Executive Vice President, and Chief Financial Officer. The Loan 
Committee will  review a  loan summary, underwriting  report, and any additional supplementary materials 
collected and prepared  for presentation by  the  Fund manager. The  Loan Committee must have a  simple 
majority vote of a quorum of the members to approve an award or recommendation to the Board. A quorum 
of the Loan Committee will be at least three members. If a loan is not approved, the Corporation will notify a 

90



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      7 
 

borrower,  in writing,  that  the application was not approved. The approval of  loans will be  limited  in  the 
following manner: 

a. The Loan Committee may approve awards pursuant to this policy up to but not exceeding $500,000.  

b. The Loan Committee may approve awards up to but not exceeding $2 million  if the Corporation  is 
acting as a conduit for another financial institution that will purchase the loan upon closing.  

c. The Loan Committee will present all other loans to the Board for consideration and/or approval.  

11. Loan Agreements. The Corporation’s President and Executive Vice President, will be authorized to consent to, 
accept,  execute  and  attest  any  such  agreements,  assignments,  certifications,  contracts,  documents, 
instruments,  releases,  financing  statements,  letter  of  instruction,  written  requests,  Notices  of  Intent, 
Commitment Letters, closing documents and other papers, whether or not mentioned herein, as may be 
necessary or convenient to carry out or assist in carrying out the purposes of this Policy  

12. Structure of  Loans.  The Corporation will  structure  loan  agreements,  rates  and  terms using  the  following 
guidelines: 

a. Term.  

i. For revolving lines of credit used for the construction of new homes or rehabilitation of existing 
homes for sale to Qualified Households, the standard length of loan agreements will be 24 months 
from the date of closing (“Term”). Full repayment of the line of credit will be due on the first day 
of the month following the end of the  loan Term (Maturity Date”).  Borrowers may be granted 
one 6‐month extension to the Maturity Date, if certain benchmarks are met in the development 
process as detailed in the loan agreement.  

ii. For rental housing developments, the Term of loan agreements may be between 5 and 15 years. 
The amortization period for loans will be based on the financial analysis and source of funds but 
is generally 20 to 30 years. The Corporation’s maximum term and amortization period will be 40 
years. Full payment of principal and interest must be made by the end of the Term or the Maturity 
Date.  The Corporation may set other Term or renewal schedules, as necessary.   

iii. For construction loans to rental housing developments, the standard length of loan agreements 
will be 24 months from the date of construction loan closing (“Term”). Full repayment of the loan 
will be due at the sooner of: 1) the Borrower’s closing on permanent financing sources; or 2) on 
the first day of the month following the end of the loan Term (Maturity Date”).  Borrowers may 
be granted one 6‐month extension to the Maturity Date,  if certain benchmarks are met  in the 
development process as detailed in the loan agreement. 

iv. For predevelopment loans, the Term of the loan will be two years. Full payment of principal and 
interest must be made by the end of the Term or the Maturity Date.  The Corporation may set 
other Term or renewal schedules, as necessary. 

b. Interest  Rate.  Interest  rates  for  the  Fund  are  generally  set  at  a  fixed  rate  of  interest  above  the 
Corporation’s cost of funds.   The minimum  interest rate for the Fund will be at  least two percent (2%) 
above the cost of funds to the Corporation, except as may be permitted in accordance with this policy. 
The cost of funds (the “Cost of Funds”) will be calculated using the blended interest rates of all sources to 
be used in the financing. Loans not paid in full at the Maturity Date or extended Maturity Date will accrue 

91



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      8 
 

interest at a rate of fifteen (15.00%) annually after the Maturity Date has passed.  Interest rates for the 
Fund will be set based on the following factors: 

i. Base Rate: the base rate (“Base Rate”) is the Corporation’s lowest possible rate and is equal to its 
cost of funds, whether the source of funding is from investments, grants or other sources; 

ii. Cost of Operations: The Corporation will generally add two‐percent (2%) to the Base Rate to cover 
its  cost of operations. The  Loan Committee may make  reasonable  adjustments based on  the 
characteristics of the loan on a case by case basis.  

iii. Default Risk: The Loan Committee may add to the Base Rate an amount based on their review of 
the Borrower’s financial statements, experience, market conditions, or any other factors the Loan 
Committee deems reasonable; 

c. Payment.  

i. For revolving lines of credit used for the construction of new homes or rehabilitation of existing 
homes  for  sale  to Qualified Households,  the  Loan  Committee may  approve  (1)  payments  of 
interest on a monthly basis, with all accrued interest, if any, and principal due upon sale of the 
home; or (2) payments of principal and interest, if any, made from the net sales proceeds (i.e., 
those proceeds  remaining after  the payment of normal and customary closing costs)  received 
from the sale of lots or homes. Interest payments will be calculated on the principal balance of 
the loan outstanding from time to time and based upon the actual number of days elapsed divided 
by 360.  Payment of all principal and interest, if any, will be made from financial guarantees within 
45 days after the Maturity Date in the event that full payment has not been made.   

ii. For rental housing developments, Payments of principal and interest must be paid on the first of 
each month  from  revenues of  the Development  (or  from any guarantees  if  revenues are not 
available) in accordance with an amortization schedule as discussed under “Term” above.  Interest 
payments shall be calculated on the principal balance of the loan outstanding from time to time 
and based upon the actual number of days elapsed divided by 360.  Payment of all principal and 
interest, if any, will be made from financial guarantees within 45 days after the Maturity Date in 
the event that full payment has not been made. 

iii. For construction loans to rental housing developments, payments of interest on the outstanding 
principal balance of the loan shall be due on the 1st of each month, with all accrued interest, if 
any, and principal due upon the Borrower closing on permanent financing or the Maturity Date, 
whichever comes first.  

iv. For predevelopment  loans, payments of  interest are due on a monthly basis, with all accrued 
interest,  if  any,  and  principal  due  upon  closing  on  construction  financing  for  the  proposed 
project(s).  Payment of all principal and interest, if any, will be made by financial guarantors within 
45  days  after  the Maturity  Date  in  the  event  that  full  payment  has  not  been made  by  the 
Borrower.    

d. Late Payments, Delinquencies, and Defaults. The Corporation will maintain complete records of the status 
of each  loan,  including any  late payments, delinquencies or defaults. Penalty  fees may be assessed  in 
compliance with loan documents and state laws.  Each of the following events will be considered events 
of default for the purpose of the loan documents: 

92



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      9 
 

i. If a loan payment is more than ten (10) days late, a notice of late payment will be forwarded to 
the borrower and a late fee of Fifty Dollars ($50) will be added to principal balance of the loan.   

ii. If a  loan payment  is more  than  twenty  (20) days  late,  the Corporation will notify Borrower  in 
writing and demand immediate payment.   

iii. If a loan payment is more than 30 days late, a notice of default will be issued by the Corporation 
to  the Borrower  in writing. An  additional  late  fee  of  Fifty Dollars  ($50) will  be  added  to  the 
principal balance of the loan.   

iv. If a loan payment is more than 45 days late the Corporation will issue a second notice of default 
to the Borrower  in writing, and a report will be provided to the Corporation’s Board, unless all 
defaults  are  cured prior  to  the next  regularly  scheduled Board meeting.  Staff may make  the 
following recommendations to the Board including, but not limited to: 

A. Correspondence or meeting with members of the borrower's mangers and/or officers; 

B. An on‐site inspection of borrower’s operations, including their books; 

C. The sending of a third notice of default; 

D. The charging of additional late fees; 

E. The development of a re‐structuring plan; and/or 

F. Other action staff may recommend. 

v. If a  loan payment  is more than Sixty  (60) days  late the Corporation’s Loan Committee may be 
convened for a special meeting.  The Loan Committee will examine the situation, based upon a 
meetings  and  communication  with  the  borrower  and  a  detailed  account  of  operational 
information.  The Loan Committee may carry out the following actions: 

A. A loan re‐structuring; 

B. A strategy to sell the loan; 

C. A notice of intent to foreclose; and/or 

D. A  further  forbearance of action based upon certainty of  repayment and confidence  in 
operations. 

e. Foreclosures. Notwithstanding the timeline provided above, in the event the Corporation determines in 
its sole discretion that a foreclosure action is necessary to protect its security for the loan prior to the 30th 
day after an event of default, the Corporation may initiate foreclosure proceedings prior to such date. The 
Corporation will consider  foreclosure as a  last option when considering actions on  loans  in default.  In 
instances of foreclosure, the Corporation will make a detailed assessment of the situation to the Board, 
including a full analysis of the plans and consequences of foreclosure. All foreclosure proceedings and 
actions will be done  in such a way as to provide maximum protection for the Corporation and for the 
interest of affected parties, especially any families or individuals who have committed to purchase housing 
units.  In  the  event  of  a  collateral  liquidation,  every  attempt will  be made  to  cover  the  cost  of  the 
Corporation’s  loan principal, accrued  interest,  if any, and the transaction costs of  liquidation (i.e.  legal, 
marketing, staff time).  

93



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      10 
 

f. Subordination.  On a case by case basis, the Corporation may agree to subordinate the payment of its loan 
to that of one or more senior loans.  In addition, the Corporation may also agree to allow a loan to be 
payable only from net cash flow in specific circumstances.  All decisions regarding subordination will first 
be made by the Loan Committee; however, if the terms of subordination are not typical in the marketplace 
for a particular type of transaction, the determination will be provided by the Board. 

g. Permanent/Take‐Out  Financing.  All  loans  used  for  the  development  of  new  subdivisions  or  the 
construction  of  infrastructure  will  require  the  borrower  to meet  certain marketing  and/or  pre‐sale 
requirements. If the borrower will be constructing site improvements to the property, the borrower must 
present a  sales  contract(s)  for at  least 70% of  the proposed  lots.  If  the borrower will be  the primary 
contractor for completed housing units, the borrower must provide a sales contract(s) for at least 40% of 
the  lots and homes  to be developed. The Corporation may also  require a purchaser waiting  list  that 
includes at least 50% of the number of lots or housing units to be developed.   

h. Revolving and Renewable Loans: The Corporation may consider on a case‐by‐case basis revolving loans 
that allow borrowers to pay back all or a portion of the principal balance and later draw additional funds 
against the principal balance during the initial Term. The Corporation may consider on a case‐by‐case basis 
renewable  loans that allow the borrower and Corporation to agree upon the terms of renewing a  loan 
after the full payment of principal balance and interest of the original loan. Renewable loans will require 
the payment of closing fees, as well as the setting of a new Term, Interest Rate and Maturity Date.  

i. Equity  Investments.  The  Corporation will  consider  any  financing,  loan  or  investment  of  funds  into  a 
Development as an equity investment (“Equity Investment”) when the borrower cannot provide sufficient 
guarantees or owner equity, as determined by  the Corporation. The Corporation may consider Equity 
Investments  in Developments  that serve very  low‐income  (50% AMI and below)households at 50% or 
below AMI or special needs populations. A minimum number of very low‐income50% AMI households or 
special needs units may be required based on the amount and nature of the contributions made by the 
Corporation. Additional fees or charges may be included in loan payment terms for units or lots sold to 
non‐qualified households. 

j. Deferred  Forgivable  Loans: The Corporation may award deferred  forgivable  loans  in  cases where  the 
funding source used for the  loans  is specifically designated for such purposes by the funding entity.  In 
such cases, the Corporation may permit zero interest (0%) loans to be issued, where repayment of the 
principal  is deferred and potentially forgiven  if the Borrower fulfills all other requirements of the  loan 
agreement.      

j.k. Loan Participations: The Corporation may participate with other  lenders  in providing  loans to qualified 
Borrowers through a participation agreement (“Participation Agreement”) in order to minimize lending 
risk  and  to  expand  the  number  of  affordable  housing  projects  we  can  finance.  The  Participation 
Agreement shall define the amount of participation by both parties, the terms and rates of the loan, and 
the responsibilities of each party. Generally, the Corporation will work to be the lender responsible for 
servicing the loan, collecting payments and conducting oversight of the Borrower.  

13. Commitment of Funds. The Corporation will provide borrowers whose  loans have been approved a  letter 
detailing  the commitment of  funding made by  the Corporation  (“Commitment Letter”). The Commitment 
Letter will detail the rates, terms and other conditions of the loan, as well as any due diligence materials or 
documents that must be submitted by the borrower prior to closing. The Commitment Letter will set timelines 
for the execution of the commitment, payment of fees and closing of the loan. The borrower will be solely 
responsible for fulfilling the requirements of the Commitment Letter. The Corporation will have the right to 

94



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      11 
 

terminate any Commitment Letter  if  it becomes aware of any changes or adverse events that may conflict 
with assumptions made during underwriting or that negatively affect the financial position of the borrower.  

14. Fees. The Corporation will be authorized  to charge  fees, penalties or other monetary accruements  in  the 
following manner:  

a. Application Fee. The Corporation may require the payment of an application fee (the “Application Fee”) 
to cover the cost of document preparation, data entry, staff review time and other expenses as necessary. 
The Application  Fee will  be  no  greater  than  $500,  and may  be waived  for  non‐profit  applicants. An 
application  will  not  be  accepted  by  the  Corporation  unless  it  is  accompanied  by  the  appropriate 
Application Fee.  

b. Origination  and  Commitment  Fees.  The  Corporation may  collect  at  closing  a  commitment  fee  (the 
“Commitment Fee”) in an amount of one‐percent (1%) of the approved loan amount, but not less than 
$2,500.  For revolving lines of credit, the Corporation may collect an origination fee (the “Origination Fee”) 
of $250 for each property added to the revolving deed of trust, and may collect a Commitment Fee less 
than one‐percent of the approved loan amount, as long as, the sum of the Commitment Fee and projected 
Origination Fees is equal to or greater than one‐percent of the approved loan amount.    

c. Closing Fee. For Predevelopment loans, the Corporation may collect at closing a fee equal to the greater 
of 2% of the loan amount or $1,500. This fee may be waived by the Corporation on a case by case basis, if 
the Corporation’s funding source for Predevelopment loans includes funding of administrative costs.  

15. Loan Closing. Borrowers will receive instructions with the Commitment Letter that detail the required steps 
and actions necessary to close on their loan. The Corporation may require the following documentation prior 
to closing: 

a. Appraisal; 

b. Site and Development Plans; 

c. Final Budget and Timeline; 

d. Construction Contracts;   

e. Financial Statements;  

f. Certificates of Corporate Status; 

g. Title Insurance; 

h. Surveys; 

i. Insurance; 

j. Legal Opinions; 

k. Fees and Expenses;   

l. Proof of Zoning; 

m. Loan Documents; and  

n. Other documents as required by the Corporation. 

95



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      12 
 

16. Construction Loan Administration.  

a. Draw Requests. Borrowers are required to submit requests for reimbursement or advances on their line 
of credit using forms provided them by the Corporation.   Contractor/Supplier  invoices are required to 
maintain oversight of construction procedures and fiscal management. 

b. Site Inspections. The Corporation may engage an experienced construction supervisor or architect to act 
as the Corporation’s inspector.  The inspector will perform site visits for each draw request to evidence 
work‐in‐place, conformity with plans, specifications and building standards.  The cost of inspections will 
be paid by borrowers, from loan proceeds if desired.  

c. Advances to Borrower. The Corporation may allow borrowers to receive loan funds in advance of the start 
of  construction  activities, based upon  the  sole determination of  the Corporation.   Advances  for new 
construction activity will be limited to $25,000 and advances for renovation or rehabilitation activities will 
be  limited to $15,000. Additional advances of  loan funds may be approved based upon the borrower’s 
continued compliance with the terms and conditions of the loan.   

d. Retainage. The Corporation will withhold 10% from each draw request made by the borrower and a total 
of 10% from the loan amount until the later of (a) the date when all contractors and/or subcontractors 
have  submitted affidavits of  lien  releases  for  the  subject property, or  (b) 40 days after  the borrower 
records an affidavit of completion in compliance with Texas Property Code 53.106.  

e. Interest Reserve. Wherever possible, the Corporation will require borrowers to pay  interest from other 
Development  sources  or  unrelated  income.    In  instances where  other  sources  are  restricted,  and/or 
unrelated  income  is unavailable or unreliable, the Corporation may permit a  loan to self‐fund accrued 
interest. 

f. Third Party Lenders/Funders. When possible, the Corporation will require other Development sources to 
fund  prior  to  the  Corporation’s  loan.   When  pro‐rata  funding  occurs,  the  Corporation  will  seek  to 
administer other Development sources.   The Corporation will seek  to hold all Development  retainage 
when possible. 

17. Acquisition Loan Administration. The Corporation may provide up to 100% of its loan funds for the purpose 
of acquiring real property if the Corporation’s financial interest in property does not exceed 50% of the total 
projected Development  costs.  If  the  Corporation  does  provide  proceeds  for  acquisition,  borrowers must 
provide  the  Corporation  with  a  complete  loan  closing  document  package  at  least  7  days  prior  to  the 
anticipated loan closing date. The Corporation may deposit the full amount of acquisition loan proceeds into 
an escrow account with the mortgage title company not more than 5 days prior to the closing of the loan. If 
delays in closing occur and exceed 5 days, the full amount of funds placed in escrow will be returned to the 
Corporation immediately upon the Corporation’s request.  

18. Loan Loss Reserves. The Corporation will establish a reserve fund to cover the cost of financial losses to the 
loan  portfolio  and  for  the  repayment  of  funds  borrowed  by  the  Corporation  to  fund  loans  (“Loan  Loss 
Reserve”). The amount of Loan Loss Reserve will be equivalent to at least 5% of the principal balance of all 
outstanding loans, or at least 3 months of payments on borrowed funds, whichever is greater. The Corporation 
may maintain a higher amount of Loan Loss Reserves based on an assessment of loan ratings of all loans in 
the portfolio.  

19. Loan Monitoring.  The  Corporation  will  establish  and maintain  loan monitoring  procedures  in  order  to 
maintain  the  Corporation’s  security  interest  and  to  assist  borrowers  in  organizational  growth  and  asset 

96



TEXAS HOUSING IMPACT FUND 
POLICY AND GUIDELINES 

 
 

Amended 2.10.21      13 
 

management. The Corporation will maintain data on the regularity of payments, annual financial statements 
of  borrowers,  status  of  Development  from  site  inspections,  and  updates  on  the  collateral  value.  The 
Corporation may provide technical assistance, when necessary, to borrowers. The nature and frequency of 
loan monitoring will be based on loan type, the life cycle of the loan (construction period, business cycle, etc.), 
performance, and overall risk evaluation, and will be included in the loan agreement.  

20. Monitoring Social Impact. The Corporation will compile a report on the social impacts of the Fund (the “Social 
Impact Report”) annually. The report presented to the Board and investors annually will include the following 
data:  

a. The geographic distribution of loans; 

b. The type of loans; 

c. The numbers and type of housing units created; 

d. The economic and demographic characteristics of households; and  

e. The leverage capacity of loans 

21. Conflict of Interest Policy. The Corporation, in the process of reviewing and awarding loans under this Fund, 
will adhere to the conflict of interest policies set by the Corporation’s Board and pursuant to §2306.5545 of 
the Texas Government Code. Additionally, at or prior to each Board meeting, each staff member and Board 
member  will  disclose  the  nature  of  any  potential  conflicts  of  interest  that  would  be  created  by  their 
participation in the discussion of a particular loan, application, membership or policy.  

22. Board Waivers. The Corporation’s Board may consider and approve a waiver to these policies at any time. 
Borrowers may request that the Board consider a waiver of these policies at a public meeting of the Board. 

97



       

    Development Finance Programs 

       
 

 

Agenda Item 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Amended Policies  for  the Texas  Housing Impact Fund. 
 

Summary 
Through the Texas Housing Impact Fund (“Fund”) TSAHC promotes  its mission to support equal access to safe, 
decent, and affordable housing with an emphasis on serving rural and underserved markets. Through the Fund 
we provide financing to non‐profit and for‐profit developers for the purpose of increasing and preserving the stock 
of affordable housing throughout the State of Texas. 
 
Staff  is proposing  to make  the  following changes  to  the policy  to eliminate conflicts with other programs and 
increase opportunities for investments to our lending program.  
 

 The terms “Extremely Low Income” and “Very Low Income” will be removed from Sections 7(c) and 12(i). 
This change is being made due to conflicts between differing federal and state definitions for these terms. 
An example is that while the term “very‐low Income” is defined in State statute as 60% and below area 
median income, the U.S. Treasury Department’s Capital Magnet Fund, one of our funders, defines “Very 
Low Income” as households earning 50% and below the area median income.  

 

 Section 12(k) is being added to the policy in order to allow TSAHC to incorporate participation loans into 
our program. Participation loans are used by two or more lenders that wish to jointly fund an affordable 
housing project through one loan agreement with the borrower. Participation loans are more prevalent 
in  real  estate  lending  and  TSAHC  has  been  approached  by  other  lenders  both  seeking  purchase 
participations in our loan pool and seeking investment in projects they intend to fund. If approved, staff 
will work with General Counsel to develop participation loan agreements and develop standard operating 
procedures for managing this new loan activity.  

 
A complete copy of the proposed policy with redlined edits, in attached to this agenda item.  

 

Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the attached policy for the Texas Housing  Impact Fund.  If adopted, 
Staff will accept all changes and post the final approved document. 

98



Tab 5 
Presentation and Discussion of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation’s 
Fiscal Year 2021 and 2022 Strategic Plans. 

99


	Cover 
	agenda
	President's Report 
	Tab A 
	Tab B 
	Tab C 
	Tab 1 
	Tab 2 
	Tab 3 
	Tab 4 
	Tab 5 
	Sept 2021 financials revised.pdf
	Board BSpg1
	Board BSpg2
	Board IS pg3




